
138 S. Brandon St. • Fallbrook CA 92028 • 760-731-9187 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

WEDNESDAY 
MARCH 13, 2019 

6:00 PM 

AT 

NEW MEETING LOCATION 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE 
138 SOUTH BRANDON ROAD  

FALLBROOK, CA 92028 



 

 

 
 
 

AGENDA 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

Wednesday, March 13, 2019, 6:00 p.m. 
 

NEW MEETING LOCATION 
Administrative Office, 1st Floor Community Room, 138 S. Brandon Rd., Fallbrook 

 

 

A. CALL MEETING TO ORDER – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

B. ADDITIONS TO AGENDA 
Pursuant  to the Brown Act, additions to the Agenda as posted are exceptional, and expressly limited to three specific situations, as 
set forth in Government Code 54954.2(b): (1) an “emergency” as determined by majority vote of the board; (2) a 2/3 vote of the board 
finding that an item requires immediate action – and the need for this action arose in time after the agenda was posted or (3) the item 
was continued from an earlier meeting (no more than 5 days earlier), at which time the item was validly posted on the agenda of the 
earlier meeting. 

 

C. BOARD MEMBER AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Opportunity for board members and citizens to speak on items of interest within subject matter jurisdiction of the District. Please note 
that, for comments made on items  not appearing on the current agenda, the Board may take no action as to the comment at the current 
meeting (Gov’t Code 54954.3[a]), and the Board is allowed only a brief response to the speaker’s comment. For the record, please state 
your name.  “Request to speak” cards should be filled out in advance and presented to the Board President or the recording secretary.  
The Board has a policy limiting any speaker to not more than five minutes  

 

D. PRESENTATIONS 
 D1. Fallbrook Food Pantry 
 

E. CONSENT ITEMS 
 E1. Approval of January 2019 Financial Statements ................................................................ 2 
 E2. Minutes of February 6, 2019 Finance Committee Meeting ............................................... 20 
 E3. Minutes of February 6, 2019 Special Board Meeting-Public Hearing ................................ 23 
 E4. Minutes of February 13, 2019 Regular Board Meeting ..................................................... 27 
 E5. Minutes of February 20, 2019 Strategic Planning Committee ........................................... 33 
 

F. REPORTS 
F1. Finance Committee – Directors Jeffries and Mroz 
F2. Gov’t and Public Engagement Committee – Directors Schwartz-Frates and Mroz 
F3. Facilities Committee – Directors Leach and Mroz 
F4. Strategic Planning Committee – Directors Salmon and Jeffries 
F5. General Counsel – Blaise Jackson 

 

G. ACTION ITEMS 
 G1. Second Reading, Hospital Records Retrieval Procedure ................................................. 47 
 G2. Special District Election Ballot – San Diego Local Agency Formation Commission .......... 52 

G3. Consideration of Obtaining District Credit Card ................................................................ 77 
 G4. Consideration of District purchase of Public Participation Toolkit for Transition to Zone- 
  Based Elections (paper or on-line options) – National Demographics Corporation ........... 80 
 



H. ITEMS FOR SUBSEQUENT MEETINGS
H1. Other Director/Staff discussion items 

H1a. Item(s) for future board agendas 
H1b. Announcements of upcoming events: 

• Community Collaborative for Health & Wellness Committee (CCH&W)
meeting – 3rd Wednesday, March 20th, 10:30am-noon, FRHD Administrative
Office, Community Room (downstairs) 138 S. Brandon Rd., Fallbrook

• Gov’t and Public Engagement Committee meeting – Wednesday, March
27th, 5:30pm, FRHD Administrative Office, 1st Floor Community Room, 138 S.
Brandon Rd., Fallbrook

• NCCCHI meeting – 1st Wednesday, April 3rd, 2:00-3:00pm, FRHD
Administrative Office, Board Conference Room, 138 S. Brandon Rd., Fallbrook

• Finance Committee meeting – 1st Wednesday, April 3rd, 5:30pm, FRHD
Administrative Office, Board Conference Room, 138 S. Brandon Rd., Fallbrook

• Woman of Wellness – 1st Thursday, April 4th, 6:00 – 7:30pm, FRHD Fallbrook
Wellness Center, Community Room,1636 E. Mission Rd., Fallbrook

• ACHD Legislative Days, April 8-9, Sacramento, CA
• Facilities Committee meeting – Friday, April 12th, 10:00am, FRHD

Administrative Office, Board Conference Room, 138 S. Brandon Rd., Fallbrook
• Bonsall Chamber of Commerce Easter Egg Hunt – Thursday, April 18th,

3:00 – 5:00pm, River Village Plaza, 5256 S. Mission Rd., Fallbrook

H2. Next Regular Board meeting – Wednesday, April 10th, 2019, 6:00pm, FRHD 
Administrative Office, Community Room (downstairs) 138 S. Brandon Rd., Fallbrook 

I. CLOSED SESSION
I1. Conference with Real Estate Negotiator Concerning Price and Terms Per Government 

Code Section 54957 (Lease, 617 Alvarado St.); 
I2. Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957(b) “new district administrator” Public 

Employment/Personnel Matters 

J. RETURN TO OPEN SESSION – Report of Action taken in Closed Session (if any).

K. ADJOURNMENT

NOTE: I certify that on Friday, March 8, 2019 I posted a copy of the foregoing agenda near the regular meeting place of 
the Board of Directors of Fallbrook Regional Health District, said time being at least 72 hours in advance of the meeting. 
The American with Disabilities Act provides that no qualified individual with a disability shall be excluded from 
participation in, or denied the benefits of District business.  If you need assistance to participate in this meeting, please 
contact the District office 24 hours prior to the meeting at 760-731-9187. 

Board Secretary/Clerk 



Page 1 of 80



Page 2 of 80



Page 3 of 80



Page 4 of 80



Page 5 of 80



Page 6 of 80



Page 7 of 80



Page 8 of 80



Page 9 of 80



TOTAL
Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19 Apr 19 May 19 Jun 19 Jul '18 - Jun 19

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

400. · District
402 · Property tax revenue 29,432 38,328 42,990 89,729 630,000 435,000 47,635 406,000 42,500 214,000 48,477 32,285 2,056,376
403 · Interest / Dividends 10,417 10,417 10,416 10,417 10,416 10,416 10,417 10,417 10,416 10,417 10,417 10,417 125,000

Total 400. · District 39,849 48,745 53,406 100,146 640,416 445,416 58,052 416,417 52,916 224,417 58,894 42,702 2,181,376

460 · Lease Income
460.01 · Med+ Urgent Care (formerly A+) 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 0 0 0 0 0 0 28,800

Total 460 · Lease Income 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 0 0 0 0 0 0 28,800

Total Income 44,649 53,545 58,206 104,946 645,216 450,216 58,052 416,417 52,916 224,417 58,894 42,702 2,210,176

Gross Profit 44,649 53,545 58,206 104,946 645,216 450,216 58,052 416,417 52,916 224,417 58,894 42,702 2,210,176

Expense
500 · Admin. Expenses & Overhead

500.10 · Salaries 22,917 22,917 22,917 22,917 22,917 22,917 22,917 22,917 22,917 22,917 22,917 22,917 275,000
500.12 · Payroll Taxes 1,917 1,917 1,917 1,917 1,917 1,917 1,917 1,917 1,917 1,917 1,917 1,917 23,000
500.14 · W/C Insurance 126 126 126 126 126 126 126 126 126 126 126 126 1,507
500.15 · Employee Health & Welfare 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 15,000
500.16 · Board Stipends 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 21,000
500.17 · Education & Conferences 1,542 1,542 1,542 1,542 1,542 1,542 1,542 1,542 1,542 1,542 1,542 1,542 18,500
500.18 · Dues & Subscriptions 1,167 1,167 1,167 1,167 1,167 1,167 1,167 1,167 1,167 1,167 1,167 1,167 14,000
500.19 · Insurance - General 1,581 1,581 1,581 1,581 1,581 1,581 1,581 1,581 1,581 1,581 1,581 1,581 18,975
500.20 · Independent Accounting Services 850 850 850 850 850 850 850 850 850 850 850 850 10,200
500.21 · Annual Independent Audit 0 8,850 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8,850
500.23 · General Counsel 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 45,000
500.25 · Office Expense

01 · Communications 304 304 304 304 304 304 304 304 304 304 304 304 3,650
02 · I.T. and Website services 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 11,000
03 · Refreshments 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 2,500
04 · Office Expenses 1,308 1,308 1,308 1,308 1,308 1,308 1,308 1,308 1,308 1,308 1,308 1,308 15,700
05 · LAFCO Admin fees 114 114 114 114 114 114 114 114 114 114 114 114 1,367
06 · Independent Contract Services 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 60,000

Total 500.25 · Office Expense 7,851 7,851 7,851 7,851 7,851 7,851 7,851 7,851 7,851 7,851 7,851 7,851 94,217

500.27 · Depreciation 429 429 429 429 429 429 429 429 429 429 429 429 5,151
500.29 · Dist Promotions & Publications 3,188 3,188 3,188 3,188 3,188 3,188 3,188 3,188 3,188 3,188 3,188 3,188 38,250
500.32 · Consultant Fees 8,563 8,563 8,563 8,563 8,563 8,563 8,563 8,563 8,563 8,563 8,563 8,563 102,750
500.33 · Copier Lease 833 833 833 833 833 833 834 833 834 833 834 834 10,000
500.36 · Accrued Vacation & Sick Leave 0 0 2,500 0 0 2,500 0 0 2,500 0 0 2,500 10,000
500.40 · Video/AV Equipment 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 5,000
580.01 · General Election 0 0 16,500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 16,500

Total 500 · Admin. Expenses & Overhead 58,129 66,979 77,129 58,129 58,129 60,629 58,130 58,129 60,630 58,129 58,130 60,630 732,900

570 · Mgmt./Maint. - E. Mission Road
570.02 · Gas & Electric 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 16,000
570.03 · Water 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 3,000
570.04 · Waste Management 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 1,000
570.06 · Landscape - Grounds Environment 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 12,000
570.07 · Custodial Services 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 6,000
570.10 · Maintenance Services & Repairs 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 5,000
570.25 · Office Expense

25.02 · I.T. & Website Services 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 3,000
25.04 · Office Expenses 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 12,000
25.06 · Independent Contract Services 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 45,000

Total 570.25 · Office Expense 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 60,000

570.29 · Dist. Promotions & Publications 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 10,000
570.32 · Consultant Fees 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 15,000

Total 570 · Mgmt./Maint. - E. Mission Road 10,667 10,667 10,667 10,667 10,667 10,667 10,667 10,667 10,667 10,667 10,667 10,667 128,000

FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT
Profit & Loss Budget Overview

July 2018 through June 2019

Report 4Page 10 of 80



TOTAL
Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19 Apr 19 May 19 Jun 19 Jul '18 - Jun 19

590 · Mgmt./Maint. - S. Brandon Road
590.01 · Property Manager 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 25,000
590.02 · Gas & Electric 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 20,000
590.03 · Water 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 11,000
590.04 · Waste Management 142 142 142 142 142 142 142 142 142 142 142 142 1,700
590.06 · Landscape - Grounds Environment 838 838 838 838 838 838 838 838 838 838 838 838 10,050
590.07 · Custodial Services 780 780 780 780 780 780 780 780 780 780 780 780 9,360
590.08 · Elevator 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 3,000
590.09 · Vehicle Expenses 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 400
590.10 · Maintenance Services & Repairs 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 5,000
590.11 · Medical Records Store & Service 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 30,000
590.12 · Fire Alarm System 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 2,500

Total 590 · Mgmt./Maint. - S. Brandon Road 9,834 9,834 9,834 9,834 9,834 9,834 9,834 9,834 9,834 9,834 9,834 9,834 118,010

600 · Community Health Contracts
600.02 · Fbk Citizens Crime Prevention 2,625 0 0 0 2,625 0 0 2,625 0 0 2,625 0 10,500
600.04 · Boys & Girls Club 18,428 0 0 0 9,188 0 0 9,188 0 0 9,188 0 45,990
600.05 · Community Health Systems, Inc. 26,250 0 0 0 26,250 0 0 26,250 0 0 26,250 0 105,000
600.06 · Fallbrook Land Conservancy 10,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 10,000
600.07 · Fbk Senior Citizens Srvc Club 19,688 0 0 0 19,688 0 0 19,688 0 0 19,688 0 78,750
600.08 · Fallbrook Smiles Project 18,769 0 0 0 18,769 0 0 18,769 0 0 18,769 0 75,075
600.09 · Fallbrook Union  H. S. District 5,000 0 0 0 5,000 0 0 5,000 0 0 5,000 0 20,000
600.11 · Palomar Family Counseling Srvc 20,738 0 0 0 20,738 0 0 20,738 0 0 20,738 0 82,950
600.17 · Foundation for Senior Care 54,882 0 0 0 54,882 0 0 54,882 0 0 54,882 0 219,527
600.18 · Fallbrook Food Pantry 50,000 0 0 0 25,200 0 0 25,200 0 0 25,200 0 125,600
600.33 · REINS Therapeutic Prgm 17,063 0 0 0 17,063 0 0 17,063 0 0 17,063 0 68,250
600.46 · Mental Health Systems, Inc. 2,428 0 0 0 2,428 0 0 2,428 0 0 2,428 0 9,711
600.48 · UCSD Eye Mobile for Children 0 0 0 0 2,975 0 0 2,975 0 0 2,975 0 8,925
600.53 · Jeremiah's  Ranch 3,872 0 0 0 3,872 0 0 3,872 0 0 3,872 0 15,488
600.54 · Healthy Adventures Foundation 2,363 0 0 0 2,363 0 0 2,363 0 0 2,363 0 9,450
600.57 · NC Fire Protection District 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 25,000 0 0 0 0 25,000
600.58 · Michelle's Place 6,300 0 0 0 6,300 0 0 6,300 0 0 6,300 0 25,200

Total 600 · Community Health Contracts 258,403 0 0 0 217,338 0 0 242,338 0 0 217,338 0 935,416

800 · District Direct Care Services
800.02 · Med+ Urgent Care 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 60,000

Total 800 · District Direct Care Services 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 60,000

Total Expense 347,032 97,480 107,630 88,630 305,967 91,130 78,631 320,967 81,131 78,630 295,968 81,131 1,974,326

Net Ordinary Income (302,383) (43,935) (49,424) 16,316 339,249 359,086 (20,579) 95,450 (28,215) 145,787 (237,074) (38,429) 235,850

Net Income (302,383) (43,935) (49,424) 16,316 339,249 359,086 (20,579) 95,450 (28,215) 145,787 (237,074) (38,429) 235,850

FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT
Profit & Loss Budget Overview

July 2018 through June 2019

Report 4 Page 11 of 80



Report 5

Page 12 of 80



Report 6

Page 13 of 80



Page 14 of 80



Page 15 of 80



Report 9

Page 16 of 80



Report 9

Page 17 of 80



Report 9

Page 18 of 80



Page 19 of 80



 

 
 

MINUTES 
 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 
Wednesday, February 6, 2019 at 5:30 P.M. 

Board Conference Room, 138 S. Brandon Road, Fallbrook CA 92028 
 
Committee Members Present: Chair Jennifer Jeffries, Barbara Mroz, Howard Salmon and Kate 
Schwartz-Frates. 
Others Present:   Administrative Assistant Linda Bannerman, Accountant, Kathy Bogle and 
Bookkeeper, Wendy Lyon and Roy Moosa. 
 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call 
Committee Chairperson Jennifer Jeffries call the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 

 
2. Public Comments 

None 
 

3. Review of Financial Statements for December 2018 

1) Balance Sheet Comparison of December 2018 to November 2018 
As of December 31, 2018, cash in the bank totaled more than $700,000, an increase over 
last month’s total of $526,000 due to property tax revenue and a transfer of funds 
reimbursing the operating account for community investment funds used.  Total current 
assets were ahead $270,000.  Fixed assets included an unbudgeted expense of $21,000 
for the E. Mission Rd. property fencing.  Accounts Payable was reduced by a decrease in 
cost for temporary staff. Total liabilities & equity reflected a positive change of $291, 
080.46. 
 

2) Income Statement for the Month Ended December 31, 2018 & Fiscal Year to Date 
     This report is also contained in the next report 
 

3) Profit & Loss Actual vs Budget – July 2018 through December 2018 
Property tax revenue is expected to catch up by fiscal year-end.  The LAIF and CalTRUST 
accounts have earned interest $115,000 over the past 6 months, and the unearned loss in 
CalTRUST is $13,000.  Kathy Bogle explained that CalTRUST is not just a savings 
account, it has investments.  You do not realize the interest unless you remove the 
account.  The interest fluctuates with the market; it is unearned equity.  The interest could 
be a gain or loss.  Jennifer Jeffries said the sidewalk project on Elder Street, which is listed 
under category 450 shows expenses of $2,590.  She said the cost of this project will grow 
significantly and is part of the expense of the sale of the building and property.  This was 
known at the time of the sale.  Regarding the MedPlus Urgent Care, we receive rent for the 
property, and this reduces the total amount of support we provide to $5,200 monthly.  
Office expense is being underspent, and the total Admin, Expenses and Overhead shows it 
being underspent by $28,000 which is deceptive because some of the consulting and other 
fees have been moved to separate categories.  Ms. Jeffries said in actuality it is closer to 

Page 20 of 80



breaking even.  Blue Zone Designation expense is to Galvanized Strategies which has 
been on hold while under consideration.  She noted the landscape expenses at the E. 
Mission property more than doubling the budget and she said she has some ideas for 
avoiding that type of over-expenditure in the future.  The overbudget for Independent 
Contract Services (temporary staff) will not happen again and temporary staff are no longer 
at the District.  The total of $45,756 over budget for 570 (E. Mission Rd.) was the temporary 
staff, landscaping, interns and Galvanized Strategies.  Looking at 590 (S. Brandon Rd.) the 
expenses were under budget.  Property tax revenue was below budget by $119,000, 
however it is anticipated it will increase prior to fiscal year-end. 
 

4) Profit & Loss Budget Overview July 2018 through June 2019 
Providing for review. 

5) Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) Statement – December 201 
The balance in the account was $1.48 million. 

6) CalTRUST Statement – December 2018 
The balance in CalTRUST was $6.8 million dollars.  Discussion ensued on the unearned 
equity.  An alternative investment account is being considered. 

7) Property Tax Revenue – Fiscal Year to Date 
Property Tax Revenue received through December 31, 2018 totaled $1.1 million. 

8) Check Detail Report – December 2018 
Presented for review. 

9) Checkbook Report – December 2018 
The Community Investment Account was discussed.  Quarterly transfers of funds from this 

account to the operating account have been approved by the Board in the amount of those 

expenditures related to the E. Mission Road property. 

 

4. Discussion Items 

1) Consideration of district credit card 
There was discussion regarding the old AMEX account and preferring to use a VISA 
account.   Ms. Jeffries said she would develop protocols for use of the District card in 
conjunction with President Salmon and they would be brought to the full board for approval. 
 

2) Consideration of plans and specifications for East Elder Street Sidewalk improvements 
(recommend advance for Board approval) 
The engineering standards required are in place for this project and were in the finance 
committee packet for the committee to review and discussion.  Following discussion, it was 
determined to recommend approval to the full board. 
 

5. Adjournment 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 5:57 p.m. 

 

        

Jennifer Jeffries, Finance Chairperson 

Page 21 of 80



Page 22 of 80



 
 
 

MINUTES 

   

SPECIAL BOARD MEETING / PUBLIC HEARING 

Wednesday February 6, 2019, 6:00 p.m. 

Fallbrook Regional Health District, Community Room, 138 S. Brandon Rd., Fallbrook 

 
 
A. CALL MEETING TO ORDER / ROLL CALL / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

Board President Howard Salmon called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. and led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 
Present:  Directors Howard Salmon, Barbara Mroz, Jennifer Jeffries and Kate Scwartz-Frates.   
Also present:  Legal Counsel Blaise Jackson and staff members, Linda Bannerman, Wendy 
Lyon and Pam Knox.  It was noted there was a Spanish translator also in attendance.  
 

B. ADDITIONS TO AGENDA 
 None 
 
C. BOARD MEMBER AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

President Salmon said it is the intention of the Fallbrook Regional Health District (FRHD) to 

move from at-large elections to zone-based elections and this is second public hearing to be 

scheduled.  He asked Mr. Jeff Tilton of National Demographics Corporation (NDC) to first 

provide his presentation; thereafter, interacting with members of the audience as they made 

their public comments. 

 

D. PRESENTATIONS 

D1. Public Hearing – Transition to Zone-Based Elections – National Demographics 

Corporation 

  Mr. Tilton said the goal is to follow the public voting rights act and a second public 

hearing is required before any maps could be developed.  He asked how many of the 

people in attendance had been to the first hearing and if anyone required Spanish 

translation.  He explained that the Federal Voting Rights Act passed in 1965 and 

California passed a Voting Rights Act in 2001, going into effect in 2002.  This made the 

requirements for filing a lawsuit much easier and there have been a flurry of lawsuits 

filed of late.  Any government body is subject to these lawsuits and FRHD elected to 

make this change now as it is significantly more costly if served with a lawsuit.  Time 

constraints are initiated with a lawsuit.  He said a minimum of two public hearings are 

required before NDC would begin to develop 3 different maps based on input from the 

District. The community can also submit maps to the District for consideration by NDC.  

Page 23 of 80



Since a new census is upcoming in 2020, it will be necessary to go through this process 

again in 2021 to go into effect in 2022.  He said he would anticipate minor modifications 

to the zones at that time. Each zone must have equal populations of humans. A ten 

percent variance is allowable. No racial gerrymandering is allowed. NDC will take all of 

the District’s input into consideration.  The District has five directors on its board and will 

have five zones with approximately 10,000 humans in each zone.  In addition, the zones 

need to be contiguous. 

 

  Director Schwartz-Frates commented that she appreciates the color-coded map of 

communities with interest.  

 

 Tom Frew asked why the zones would be considered by where the current directors live, 

which he believes is starting with the wrong perspective.  Mr. Tilton said some districts 

used that approach, but he did not say that was recommended.   

 

 Joe Beyer stated that the Fallbrook school districts used that approach and were met 

with angry residents who questioned as to why they did that. 

 

 Leticia Stamos said she had a couple of questions.  She questioned the 90-day timeline.  

Legal counsel said certain timelines are required, one of them being that the first two 

public hearings must be held within 30 days of each other.  There is no timeline for 

having the maps created.  There is a requirement to seek community input, and even 

after the maps are drawn, if the community doesn’t approve of any of them, they can 

submit a map for consideration.  The 90-day timeline relates to entities having received 

a letter from an attorney that notifies them they are not in compliance with the law.  Mrs. 

Stamos asked when the final map needs to be approved by the FRHD Board. Legal 

counsel said it must be in place for the 2020 election, with time allowed for recording 

and submittal to the Registrar of Voters which would be June of 2020.  Her next 

comment was regarding outreach to the public, in terms of those who the legislation is 

designed to protect.  She believes all Districts in Fallbrook have failed to effectively 

communicate information about this matter.  She said other District’s maps were 

created by NDC protecting current board members by each being in a separate zone.  

Even after public input, she feels the Districts failed to listen to the input of the Spanish 

speaking community (the protected class).  Mr. Tilton offered to contact the President of 

NDC and said he would provide him with her name (and others present if desired) and 

provide him with contact information so that there can be further communication. 

 

 President Salmon said he appreciates the comments by Mrs. Stamos and assured all 

present that the FRHD Board will not ask for each member to have their own zone.  The 

process will be objective.  

 

 Tom Frew said the school districts posted their maps in advance and the public took 

exception to the maps.  He asked if FRHD could do it the opposite way.  Legal Counsel 

said it is a requirement for the maps to be posted 7 days prior to the public meeting 

when public input is taken regarding the maps.  Discussion ensued and Mr. Jackson 

said that there is no reason why the public cannot meet more than the 2 public hearings 

Page 24 of 80



required to work on providing input to the drawing of the maps.  Mr. Frew said he 

already has maps his group of concerned citizens have developed with the assistance 

of demographers, academics and legal consultants.  Further discussion ensued, 

President Salmon said he understands that Mr. Frew would like to see scheduled 

another session in which the maps can be further discussed, they can share their maps 

with FRHD and perhaps have a map drawing session. 

 

 Mr. Tilton said NDC can schedule a map drawing session with tools to assist in the 

process.  Mrs. Stamos said she is feeling better about this process.  A member of the 

high school board, Darlene Summers, noted they are under a timeline and doing the 

best they can to meet community needs and expectations in this matter.  She 

suggested that when the maps are drawn, indicate the term of each director within a 

zone and when they are next up for election, not their names.  

 

 Mrs. Stamos said it is conceivable that more than one zone could have a Latino 

representative. 

 

 Director Jeffries said she associated herself with President Salmon’s comment that the 

maps be started neutral and that it not be about where she lives; she would rather be 

anonymous.  She said this is such a chance for our community and she is sorry about 

the stress and contention surrounding this process.  It’s an opportunity for the health 

and wellness of our constituents to do this mapping with great care and degree of 

rationality and mathematics and to look and see where the naturally occurring 

communities of interest are and map accordingly. 

 

 Ms. Stamos said they have been excited about this opportunity.   

 

 Fire Chief Stephen Abbott said the fire district will follow the health district in this process 

as other than the De Luz area, the fire district is very similar to the health district. 

 

 President Salmon said another public session will be scheduled soon. 

  
E. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 6:47 p.m. 
 
 
 
       
Howard Salmon, President 
 
 
 
       
Board Secretary/Clerk 

Page 25 of 80



Page 26 of 80



Page 27 of 80



Page 28 of 80



Page 29 of 80



Page 30 of 80



Page 31 of 80



Page 32 of 80



Page 33 of 80



Page 34 of 80



Page 35 of 80



Page 36 of 80



Page 37 of 80



Page 38 of 80



Page 39 of 80



Page 40 of 80



Page 41 of 80



Page 42 of 80



Page 43 of 80



Page 44 of 80



Page 45 of 80



Page 46 of 80



Fallbrook Regional Health District 
Policy #  Page 1 of 4 

Title: Record Retrieval  

Policies and Procedures Manual  

 
Latest Revision Date:  2/8/2019 

 

Records Retrieval 
 

1. Request received. 

 Verbal request – get it in writing, ask for a written, signed authorization from Patient.  

Once received in writing, log into notebook or tracking sheet with date received, name of 

former patient, and type of request. 

a. Written: 3 major options:  

 

(1) Written authorization and request direct from Patient (signed by requesting patient); 

 

(2) Authorization to release to third party – check for sufficiency. 

Signed by former patient – form of ID provided (Driver’s License or SSN?); 

 

(3) Subpoena – Scan and e-mail to counsel for compliance review 

Counsel will advise re: sufficiency/completeness of subpoena. 

b. Are specific documents requested (docs from ER visit or orthopedic surgery reports/charts, 

x-rays; specific identification – mammogram or back x-rays)? 

(1)  Are specific dates (of treatment, or range of time for records) provided?   

A. If yes,  

i. go to step 1c. 

ii. and request seeks records older than 2000 for an adult, unlikely to find any 

records that old. Juvenile records may have been retained longer by CHS.  

Anything older than 1998 for minors at the time of visit (except for births dating 

back to 2000) are unlikely to be retained. 

B. If no specific date or range provided, contact and ask to confirm with 
patient/requester if entire medical files are requested or only going back certain 
time period? 

 

Page 47 of 80



Fallbrook Regional Health District 
Policy #  Page 2 of 4 

Title: Record Retrieval 

Policies and Procedures Manual 
 

Latest Revision Date:  2/8/2019 

 

c. Paper medical records/files: let requester know there is a copy charge per page of .15; 

 
d. X-ray films or other radiology: quote requester a duplication price of $30.00 per individual 

film plate/sheet (lowest price we obtained in surveying copying companies [Advanced Atty 

Service]).   

 

(1) If requester is a medical facility, offer them the option of check-out, borrowing of 

the films, and transport using the transmittal check-out form devised for that 

purpose. Note the date of transmission of the borrowed x-rays in the log book, and 

diary for follow up 35 days later (to recontact the provider and inquire about status 

of return of the borrowed x-rays).   

 

2. Search for Records.  (three different methods) 

 

a. Use the Iron Mountain on-line Portal (https://ironmountainconnnect.com), to search for 

and order files by patient name, Medical record number (if known-see 2b.), Date of Birth; 

 

b. Search/query the four excel databases received (only three of these contain patient name 

information, SKP Box numbers and Medical Record Numbers; only the earliest one has 

extensive birthdate information). The earliest one also consists primarily of medical record 

folders and radiology folders.  

 

c. Contact CHS in Nashville (currently Melissa Niles/Letha Anderson) and provide the name 

and identifying information of the requesting party for query within the CHS/Iron Mountain 

digital record system;  (NOTE: CHS is working on affording District direct access to online 

database which will obviate the need to contact Nashville) 

 

NOTE:  for records for services prior to 2014 there will likely be no digital records 

obtainable. 

  

(1) Follow up with CHS in one week if confirmation not received. 

 

Page 48 of 80

https://ironmountainconnnect.com/


Fallbrook Regional Health District 
Policy #  Page 3 of 4 

Title: Record Retrieval 

Policies and Procedures Manual 
 

Latest Revision Date:  2/8/2019 

 

(2) CHS should be able to confirm through its electronic portal all of the following: 

A. Whether requester/subject was, in fact, a former patient; 

B. Identifying information (date(s) of service, inpatient or emergency dept., etc.); 

C. Whether and to what extent there exist any electronic medical records for the 

subject of the request. 

D. Order identified paper files from Iron Mountain by telephone or email. Need to 

provide patient name, DOB, and SKP box number, if obtainable from 

spreadsheet.  

3. Files Delivered by Iron Mountain.  

 

When files arrive from Iron Mountain, keep them in a locked and secured location in the office, 

safe from exposure to the elements. 

 

a. For paper files requested by former patient, current medical provider, or other authorized 

third party, copy them exactly as presented in the file jackets. CAREFULLY check folder 

BEFORE copying to ensure that the records within are for the Requested patient only! (DO 

NOT COPY RECORDS OF ANOTHER PATIENT WHICH ARE MISFILED!) 

 

b. For radiographs, organize and inventory these by date, especially if provider has opted for 

borrowing (you’ll need to list quantity and dates on the check-out form). Check patient 

Name to be sure correct x-rays are in file. 

(1) If x-rays were subpoenaed, or sought by law office through a signed authorization 

to release by the former patient, contact the law office and confirm the number of 

radiographs (do not provide the law office with specific physical parts of the body 

shown in the images, and decline to discuss that information), and confirm with 

them that they will pay the $30.00 per film and that the District requires payment 

in advance for copying.  Once payment is received, contact Advanced Attorney 

Service and have them pick up the x-rays, copy and return the originals. 

 

NOTE: For files requested by third party authorization and subpoena, which are transmitted 

by a COPY SERVICE or ATTORNEY SERVICE, the service will likely provide the labor to copy 

the documents themselves with a portable scanner. Contact the entity once the files are  

 

Page 49 of 80



Fallbrook Regional Health District 
Policy #  Page 4 of 4 

Title: Record Retrieval 

Policies and Procedures Manual 
 

Latest Revision Date:  2/8/2019 

 
identified and transported to District office to make arrangements with the 

copy service/attorney service during District work hours. 
 

4. Copying Completed.  

a. Once all paper records requested have been copied and all digital patient records have 

been received from CHS (if any), and all x-rays have been copied, mail the entire package 

to the particular provider.   

 

b. Records sought per subpoena will have a certification from the “Custodian of Records.”  An 

authorized District representative will need to sign that document and include it in the 

package of materials obtained by the subpoena. 

 

c. Once all copying operations are complete and the copies of the requested records have 

been transmitted to the requester, contact Iron Mountain to arrange for pick up and return 

of the files.  So long as completed file work is done and a secure storage place exists, it will 

be desirable to combine several completed files in a “batch” for pickup. Don’t request Iron 

Mountain come out and pick up each singular file once the work is complete. Each trip to 

District includes a transportation charge. 

 
ANY QUESTIONS CONCERNING A REQUEST SHOULD BE DIRECTED TO LEGAL COUNSEL. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 50 of 80



Page 51 of 80



Page 52 of 80



Page 53 of 80



Page 54 of 80



Page 55 of 80



Page 56 of 80



Page 57 of 80



Page 58 of 80



Page 59 of 80



Page 60 of 80



Page 61 of 80



Page 62 of 80



Page 63 of 80



Page 64 of 80



Page 65 of 80



Page 66 of 80



Page 67 of 80



Page 68 of 80



Page 69 of 80



Page 70 of 80



Page 71 of 80



Page 72 of 80



Page 73 of 80



Page 74 of 80



Page 75 of 80



Page 76 of 80



Page 77 of 80



Page 78 of 80



Page 79 of 80



National Demographics Corporation 

Page 6

o Analysis and preparation for Board consideration of all whole or partial plans
submitted by the public;

o Conversion of all maps and reports to web-friendly versions for online posting;
o Online posting of all maps to an interactive website for detailed Board and public

review;
o Any requested additional maps and/or map revisions requested;

 Plan Presentation:
o Presentations at Board meetings and/or public forums by phone- or web-

conference (or in person for the “in person presentation” fee listed under
“optional elements” below);

 Work with the County Registrar of Voters to implement the final adopted plan.

Optional Districting Project Elements  

Selected at the client’s discretion:  

 In-person presentation at Board meetings, facilitation of
public forum(s), and/or any other requested meetings; ................................................. $2,000 

 Preparation and processing of paper, PDF and Excel-based "public participation
kits" (paper kits that allow the public to draw and submit their own plans). .............. $4,000 

 Creation, hosting, and updating of an NDC--managed project information
website (if the client does not wish to manage a project website as part
of its existing website). ........................................................................................................ $3,500 

 Hosting, managing and processing submitted plans for an online interactive
system that allows public to draw and submit proposed districting plans
through a standard web browser ...................................................................................... $13,500 

 Spanish translation of project-related materials .................................................. $125 per page 

Stated prices include all travel, printing (except public participation kits and any large-plot 
maps), and other anticipated expenses.  

Timeline: The detailed timeline will be worked out in consultation with the District. The 
project can be done in anywhere from a few weeks to ten months, depending on how much 
public engagement is desired and how fast the District wishes to complete the work. 

Other Potential Project-Related Expenses: 

The only anticipated additional districting expenses would be any site or staff costs for 
conducting the community forums; and the cost of printing or copying paper copies of the 
“Public Participation Kit.” In NDC’s experience, most public participants will download and 
print the Kits in their own homes or offices. 

Sample Districting/Redistricting References 

Mr. Rick Haydon, City Manager, City of Santa Maria, 110 E. Cook Street, Santa Maria, CA 
93454-5190. Phone: (805) 925-0951 ext. 2200. Email: rhaydon@cityofsantamaria.org 

Page 80 of 80




